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Independent Auditor's Report

To

The Members of M/s. Criss Financial Holdings Limited

Report on the standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Criss Financial Holdings limited

l"the Compdny''l which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 3I,2079, the Statement of Profit and

Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to

the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in

India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31 March 20L9, profit, changes in equity and its Cash

flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section

143(10) of the Companies Act,2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to it of the

financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the R and we
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have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

basis for our opinion.
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with these requirements and the Code of

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

Responsibilitv of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in

equityand cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in

India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of

the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process

Audito/s Responsibilitvfor the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we

are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the,going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a

going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial sta
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disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions

may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the Central

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section t43 of the Companies Act, 20L3, we give in

the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

a. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books.

b. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow

Report are in agreement with the books of account.

Statement dealt with by this
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c. ln our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2OI4.

d. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,zOLg taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3l'tMarch, 2019 from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section t64 (2l'of the Act.

e. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure-

8".

f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20L4, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position in its financial

statements - Refer Note 29 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any materialforeseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the investor education and protection

fund by the company.

For Raju and Prasad

Chartered Accountants

^.i
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Place: Hyderabad

Date:24th May,2019

S. Ranganathan

Partner

M. No: 022738
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Annexure - A to the Auditors' Report

The Annexure referred to Our Report of even date to the members of Criss Financial Holdings Limited

on the accounts of the company for the year ended 31't March, 2OLg.

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at

reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion,

the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the

nature of the assets.

(c) As the company doesn't hold any immovable properties in the name of the company, the

reporting requirement under Para 3 (i) (c) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is not

applicable.

ii. As the company has neither purchased raw materials, stores nor maintained any stocks,

reporting requirement under Para 3 (ii) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is

applicable.

The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other

parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.

The company has neither granted any loans and advances nor given guarantees in respect of

persons described in section 185 and 186 of companies act, 2013. Hence, the reporting under

Para 3(iv) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73

the

not

ill

tv.

V,

and74 of the Act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified.

.G

{e:
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to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of

148 (1) of the companies Act 2013.

vt.

vil.

As per the information given

cost records under section

a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Employee State

Insurance, Employee Provident fund, Professional Tax, Income Tax, Goods and Services tax, and

any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities.

b)According to information and explanations given to us there are no disputed statutory dues in

respect of income Tax, Employee State Insurance, Employee Provident fund, Professional Tax,

GST and other material statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

viii. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank or

debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

ix. The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(lncluding debt instruments).Further, the term loans taken by the company were applied for the

purpose for which they were obtained.

Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us, we

have neither come across any instance of material fraud on or by the Company, noticed or

reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, during the year the Company has not paid/provided managerial

remuneration. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not

a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xt.

xil.
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xiii. In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are

188 of Companies Act and the details have been disclosed in

by the applicable accounting standards.

Place: Hyderabad

Date:24th May,2oI9
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in compliance with sedion L77 and

the financial statements as required

xv.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has made private placement of shares during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors

or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. The Company is registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act 1934.

For Raju and Prasad

Chartered Accountants

FRN:0034755

Partner

M. No:022738
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Annexure - B to the Auditors' Report

Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Criss Financial Holdings

Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March,2079 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements

ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibilitv for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('lCAl').

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its

business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on

Auditing, issued by lCAland deemedto be prescribed undersection 143(10)of the CompaniesAct,2013,

to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal

Financial Controls and, both issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of tndia. Those Standards

and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
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audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial

controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

!. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations

of management and directors of the company; and
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3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets

financial statements.

Place: Hyderabad

Date:24th May,2OI9

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial

controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial

control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively for the year ended 31" March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in

the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of lndia.

For Raju and Prasad Chartered

Accountants

FRN:0034755
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or timely detection of unauthorizec

that could have a material effect on the

S. Ranganathan

Partner

M. No: 022738
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Board of Directors,

M/s. Criss Financial Holdings Limited.

As required by Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank Directions) 2016 in

terms of Section 45 | (f) of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 and on the basis of such tests as we

considered appropriate for the year ended with 31st March, 2019, we report hereunder on the matters

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4.

i. The company is engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution and the company has

obtained the certificate of Registration (CoR)from the Reserve Bank of India (RBl).

ii. The company is entitled to hold CoR in terms of its asset/ income pattern as on March 31't, 2OL9.

iii. The company is meeting the requirement of Net owned Funds as laid down in Master Direction -

Non-Banking Financial Company -Systemically lmportant Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve

Bank) Directions, 2016.

iv. The Board of directors of the company has passed resolution for non-acceptance of any public

deposits.

v. The company has not accepted any public deposits during the year.

vi. The company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, accounting

standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in

terms of Systemically lmportant Non-Banking Financial (Non- Deposit Accepting or Holding)

Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

For Raju and Prasad

Chartered Accountants
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 24th May,2Ot9.

, Partner

H, M. No: 022738
rT

Mumbai Enanch:
511, The Corporate Centre,
Nirmal Lifestyle Mall, L.B.S. Road,
Mulund West, Mumbai - 400 080
lahr 0ll 3667116F / 110n

SBM Colony, Anand Nagar,
Bangalore - 560 024
Fh' t 9l.efitl']70047

Ganapathi Nagar,
Jalgaon - 475 OO1

Ccll r 19l 90667tt000

Tirupati Branch:
DoorNo.19-9-1c,
Kakathiya Nagar,
Old Thiruchanur Road, Tirupati.
t oll : lU1 U/U/IUUUtjUU

Bangalore Branch: Jalgaon Branch:
# 202, Akash Avenue, # 34, 1st Main, Flat No. 7, Krunal Apartments,

U RL: www. rajuandprasad.com



RAJU & PRASAD Head Office :

401, "Diamond House",
Adj. Amrutha Hills,
Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500 082
Ph :o4;0-2?410404105106
Fax :04O -2341O403
E-mail : hyderabad@rajuandprasad. com

rajuandprasad@gmail com

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

We have examined the books of accounts and other records of M/s Criss financial Holdings Limited for

the financial year ending March 31st, 2019. On the basis of the information submitted to us, we certify

the following:

S. No Particulars Details

6AErio

1. Name of the company M/S Criss Financial Holdings

Limited

2 Certificate of Registration No. B -09.00337

3 Registered office Address Plot no. 31&32, Ramky Selenium

Towers, Tower A, Ground floor,

Financial

District,Na nakramguda, Hyderabad-

500032

4 Corporate office Address same as above

5 The company has been classified by RBI as: Loan Company

(lnvestment Company / Loan Company / AFC /
NBFC-MFI/ NBFC- Factor / tFC / IDF- NBFC)

6 Net Owned Fund (in 'Crore) 48.86

(Calculation of the same is given in the Annexure)

7 Total Assets (in' Crore) LO6.27

8 Asset-lncome pattern:

(in terms of RBI Press Release 1998-99 /1269 dated

April8, 1999)

al % of Financial Assets to Total Assets

99.46

b) % of Financial Income to Gross Income 81.88

(NBFC-Factor / NBFC-MFl / AFC / IFC may also

report separately below) #

Mumbai Branch: Bangalore Branch: Jalgaon Branch: Tirupati Branch:
51'l , The Corporate Centre, # 202, Akash Avenue, # 34, 1st Main, Flat No. 7, Krunal Apartments, Door No. 1g-g-1c,
Nirmal Lifestyle Mall, L.B S. Road, SBM Colony, Anand Nagar, Ganapathi Nagar, Kakathiya Naoar,
Mulund West, Mumbai - 400 080 Bangalore - 560 O24
Phi022-25671155 / 1199 Ph' +91-5241i70o47

Jalgaon - 475 001 Old Thiruchanur Road, Tiruoati
Cell : +91-9966738900 Cell : +9'l-9704899666

U RL: www. raluandprasad.conr



RA'U & PRASAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Head Office:
401, "Diamond House',
Adj. Amrutha Hills,
Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500 082
Ph :040 - 23410404105106
Fax :040 -23410403
E-mail : hyderabad@rajuandprasad.com

rajuan d p rasad @ g m a i L com

]F

Whether the company was holding any Public

Deposits, as on March 3L,2OL9?

lf Yes, the amount in ' Crore

Has the company transferred a sum not less than

20% of its Net Profit for the year to Reserve Fund?

(in terms of Sec 45-lC of the RBI Act, 1934).

Has the company received any FDI?

lf the company is classified as an NBFC-Factor;

a) % of Factoring Assets to Total Assets

bl % of Factoring lncome to Gross Income

lf the company is classified as an NBFC-MFl;

% of Qualifying Assets to Net Assets

(refer to Notification DNBS.PD.No.234 CGM (US)

2011 dated December 02, 2OLLI

lf the company is classified as an AFC;

al % of Advances given for creation of physical /
real assets supporting economic activity to Total

Assets

bl % of income generated out of these assets to

Total Income

lf the company is classified as an NBFC-IFC

% of lnfrastructure Loans to Total Assets

Has there been any takeover/acquisition of control/

change in shareholding/ Management during the

year which required prior approval from RBI

Mumbal Branch:
511 , The Gorporate Centre,
Nirmal Lifestyle Mall, L,B.S, Road,
Mulund Wegt, Mumbai - 400 080
Ph O22-2567'11 55 / 1 1 99

Bangalore Branch:
# 202, Akash Avenue, # 34, 1st Main,
SBM Colony, Anand Nagar
Bangalorc - 560 024
Ph : +91-9241570047

Jalgaon Branch:
Flat No. 7, KrunalApartmcnts,
Ganapathi Nagar,
Jalgaon - 475 001
Cell : +91-996073E900

Tirupati Branch:
Door No. 19-9-1G,
Kakathiya Neger,
Old Thiruchanur Road. Tiruoati
Ccll : +91-9704699666

U RL: www. rajuandprasad.com



RAIU & PRASAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Place: Hyderabad

Date:24th May,2OI9

Head Office :

401, "Diamond House",
Adj. Amrutha Hills,
Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500 082
Ph :040 -2341O404/05/06
Fax :040 - 23410403
E-mail : hyderabad@rajuandprasad.com

raj u a nd p rasad @ g mai l. com

For Raju and Prasad

Chartered Accountants

FRN:0034755

S. Ranganathan

Partner

M. No.022738

(Yes/No) Yes - Change of more than 26% in the

company's shareholding and change of

more than 3Oo/oin the company's

directors. During the year, the company

has become subsidiary of Spandana

Sphoorty Financial Limited.

Prior approvalfrom RBI dated October

05, 2018 obtained by the company for

such changes.

lf yes, please specify.

required prior approvalfrom RBI?

(please refer to per DNBR (PD) CC. No.

065/03.10.0OL/2O75-LG dated July 09, 2015 on the

subject for details)

DNBS (H) CMS. No. 748

/OO.O0.297 /2018-tg dated October 05,

2018

f n terms of paragraph 2 of Notification No. DNBS.201lDG(VL)-2008 dated September 18, 2008, a

separate report to the Board of Directors of the company has been made.

I have read and understood paragraph 5 of Notification No. DNBS.201/DG(VL)-2008 dated September

19, 2008.

Mumbal Branch:
511, The Corporate Centre,

NirmalLifesMe Mall, L.B.S. Road,
Mulund Wwt, Mulrltl .400 0t0
Ph:022-25671155 / 1199

Bangalore Branch:
# 202, Akash Avenue, # 34, 1st Main,
SBM Colony, Anand Nagar,
lrrrgrlorr. t60 014
Ph: +91-924'1570047

Jalgaon Branch:
Flat No. 7, Krunal Apartments,
Ganapathi Naoar,
J!lg!6n " 476 UUI
Cell : +91-9966738900

Tirupatl Branch:
Door No. 19-9-1G.

Kakathiya Nagar,
old Thlruonrnur Rodd, rilupdlr.
Cell : +91-9704899666

URL: wwwrajuandprasad.com
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Head Office :

401, "Diamond House",
Adj. Amrutha Hills,
Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500 082
Ph :o4,O-2910404105106
Fax :040 - 2341O403
E-mail : hyderabad@rajuandprasad.com

rajuandprasad@gmail.com

Annexure

Capital Funds Tier | (Rs. In Crores)

Paid up Equity Capital

Preference shares to be compulsorily converted into equity

b. Share Premium

c. Capital Reserves

d. Debenture Redemption Reserve

e. Capital Redemption Reserve

f. Credit Balance in P&L Account

g. Otherfree reserves (may be specified)

Special Reserves

a. Statutory Reserve

b. Employee Stock Option Reserve

Total of 1 to 4

Less: i. Accumulated balance of loss

ii. Deferred Revenue Expenditure

ii. Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

iii. Other intangible Assets

Investment in shares ot

(i) Companies in the same group

(ii) Subsidiaries

Mumbai Branch:
51'1, The Corporate Centre,
Nirmal Lifestyle Mall, L.B.S. Road,
Mulund West, Mumbai - 400 080
Ph:022-25671155 / 1199

Bangalore Branch:
# 202, Akash Avenue, # 34, 1st Main,
SBM Colony, Anand Nagar
Bangalore - 560 024
Ph: +91-924157QQ47

Jalgaon Branch:
Flat No. 7, Krunal Apartments,
Ganapathi Nagar,
Jalgaon - 475 OO1

Cell : +91-9966738900

Tirupati Branch:
Door No. 19-9-1G,
Kakathiya Nagar,
Old Thiruchanur Road, Tirupati
Ccll +91-9704899666

URL: www.rajuandprasad.com
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Head Office :

401, "Diamond House",
Adj. Amrutha Hills,
Punjagutta, Hyderabad - 500 082
Ph : O40 -2341O404/05/06
Fax :04Q -23410403
E-mail : hyderabad@rajuandprasad.com

rajuandprasad@gmail. com

(iii) Wholly Owned Subsidiaries Nil

(iv) Other NBFCs Nil

7

Book value of debentures, bonds outstanding loans and advances, bills

purchased and is counted (including H.P. and lease finance) made to, and

deposits with

Nil

(i) Companies in the same group Nil

(ii) Subsidiaries Nil

(iii) Wholly Owned Subsidiaries/oint Ventures Abroad Nil

8 Total of 6 andT

9 Amount in item 8 in excess of LO% of Owned Fund Nil

10 Net Owned Fund 48.86

Mumbai Branch:
511 , The Corporate Centre,
Nrrmal l"ifnnlvla Mall I ft fi llnarl
MUtUnd vv06t, MumDdt 4uu u8u
Ph: 022-2567 1 155 / 1199

Bangalore Branch:
# 202, Akash Avenue, # 34, 1 st Main,
,SBltrl linlnny Anand lrlngrr
Bangalore . btju U24
Plt . +V1-9241579947

Jalgaon Branch:
Flat No. 7, Krunal Apartments,
Grnnpathi hlagnn
Jalsaur r - 475 0o t
Cell : +91-995,57389UU

Tirupati Branch:
Door No, 19-9-1c,
HEhathil'n [tlnnIll
Old Thlruchanur Road, lrrupatr.
tiell : +91-9704899656

URL: www.rajuandprasad.com



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITEI)
Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2019

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

Notes
As at

31 March,2019
As at

3l March.2018
As at

01 Aoril.2017
ASSETS

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loan portfolio

Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Non-financial assets

Deferred tax assets (net)
Property, plant and equipment
lntangible assets

Other non financial assets

Total non-fi nancial assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities

Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Subordinated liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

Non-fi nancial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)

Provisions
Other non financial liabilities

Total non-fi nancial liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Membership No.022738

Place: Hyderabad
Date:24-05-2019

l r 50,04,28,653 60,44,57,873 20,87,70,951
l l 13,77,636 25,28,51,295 16,18,86,902
12 95,89,771 4,25,39,974 2,35,23,250

51,13,96,060 gg,g

5,90,55,867
1,92,088

t4

5

6

7

1,08,84,164

37,77,370

r,02,36,97,378

r,86,29,228

4,84,64,100

783

2,65,r9,959

2,06,77,r30

1,02,29,63,8s8

12,62,884
I 3,85,054
10,05,793
57,1

2,95,6r,930

1,9s,06,157

1,07,83,090

46,96,23,48r

7,54,588

5,63,1 98
'7,64,712

2,02,384

2,95,61,930

8

9

9

t0

13

l4
15

T6

t7

Total liabilities and equity

Summary of sipnificant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe standalone financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

For Raju and Prasad

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm reeistration number : 0034755

'ehalf of the Board of Directors of
cial Holdings Limited

Padrfla.ia Gangireddy Khan
Partner DireCtor Director

DIN No. 00004842

Place: Mumbai
Date:24-05-2019

14,36,262

8,8 1,535

6,80,032
27.62.909 I

1,79,45,851
3,6s,904

31.66.114

1,36,23,527
3,05,858
2.98.730

44 t4 2r3

For and on

DIN No. 06436957



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITEI)
Statment ofProfit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2019

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31. 2019 March 31. 2018

Revenue from operations
hterest income
Net gain on fair value changes

Commission income
Others

Total revenue from operations

Other income

Total income

Expenses

Finance cost
Impairment on financial instruments
Employee benefit expenses

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense:

Cunent tax
Deferred tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains(losses) on defined benefit plans

lncome tax effect
Total other comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share (equity share, parvalue ofRs.l0 each)
Computed on the basis oftotal profit for the year
Basic
Diluted

Summary of significant accounting policies

6,0r,70,222 3,32,66,000

39,99,06,471

20,53,22,112

19.4s.84.359

5,66,78.954

13.80.01.017

l8

20

32,74,58,368
1,05,411

r,19,37,028
2.35.442

20,04,98,072
82,340

44,85,484

33,97,36.249 20.50.65.896

23.83.31.897

21

22

23

9
1A

t4,90,05,066
(3,16,406)

4,68,97,479
t4,17,804

8,23,67,r37
7,1r,096

3,80,42,23r
14,20,r2r

83.18.169 63.34.8e7
12.88.75,482

10.94.56.415

5,68,91,609
(2.t2.6ss\

3,43,02,382
{7,05 34R)

3.35.97.034

13.79.05.405 7.58.s9.381

r,34,893
(39,281)

19,451

6.664\
7.58.73.168

26

26

25.66
22.82

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe standalone financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

For Raju and Prasad

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number : 0034755

alf of the Board ofDirectors of
al Holdings Limited

Director
DINNo.06436957Membership No.022738

Place: Hyderabad
Date:24-05-2019

Place: Mumbai
Date:24-05-2019

For and on b

t4$l
,rrl*



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 3f,2019

(Amount in rupees unless otheMise stated)

Notes
For the year ended For the year ended

Msrch 31- 2O19 Mqroh 31- 2O1R

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Interest on income tax

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for gratuity

Inpaiment on Financial Instruments

Net gain on fair value changes

Other provisions and write offs

Share based payment to employees

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital :

Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities

lncrease / (decrease) in provisions

Increase / (decrease) in other non financial liabilities
(Increase) / decrease in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Increase in loan portfolio

Increase in financial assets

(Increase) / decrease in other non financial assets

Casb used in operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash used in operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase ofproperty, plant and equipment

Proceeds from derecognition ofproperty, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net gain on fair value changes

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue ofequity shares

Dividend paid

Dividend distribution tax paid

Redemption of preference shares

Borrowings (other than debt securities) (net)

Subordinated liabilities (net)

Net cash from financing activities (C)

Net increased / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 4)

Summary of significant accounting policies

o

2l

22

22

24

19,45,84,359

4 1,68,865

14,17,804

69,10 I
(6,5r,167)

(1,05,41 1)

(1,08,024)

1,r4,504

19,94,90,031

(3,29,50,202)

1,43,38,142

(17,46,039)

1,68,99,760

(82,353)

( 1,37,66,005)

1,29,49,368

10,94,56,415

14,20,121

1,02,744

7,11,096

(82,340)

94,908

11,17,02,944

t,90,16,72s

(1,4r,36,587)

28,67,384

(98,94,040)

(s5,40,s1,473)

(40,77,365)

(r,r4,ss,786)

19,51,32,702

(3,43,96,624)

(46,00,28,198)

(1,58,66,71 8)

16,W36,078 (47,58,94,916)

(10,27,203)

4,38,678

1,05,4t I

(28,43,8?2)

82,340

(4,83,114) (27,61,532)

16

17

17

12

ll

25,00,00,1 00

(5,83,84,8 l2)
(r,20,01,169)

(10,40,29,220)

(25,r4,73,6s9)

(1,60,64,395)

39,56,86,922

10,60,47,723

(17,s8,88,7s9) 48,56,70,2s0

(1,56i35,795) 70,13,802

2,65,19,959 t,95,06,157

1,08,84,164 2,6s,19,9s9

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Raju and Prasad

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm reeistration number: 0034755

Partner

Membership No.022738

Place: Hyderabad

Date:24-05-2019

For and on belalfofthe Board of
Criss Financ/al Holdings Limited

Padm{a Gangireddy

ulrector

DIN No. 00004842

Place: Mumbai

Date:24-05-2019
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CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly known as Keerlana Financiul Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3lr20l9 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

l. Corporateinformation

Criss Financial Holdings Limited (formerly Keertana Financial Limited) ('CFL' or 'the Company') is a
public company limited by shares domiciled in India and incorporated under the provision of the
Companies Act, 1956 ('the Act') on 20th August, l992.The Company is registered as a non-deposit
accepting Non-Banking Financial Company ('NBFC-ND') with the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI'). The
Company is engaged in the business of finance by providing Individual Loans, Small Business Loans,
Mortgage Loans and Group Loans.

Basis ofpreparation

a) Statement of compliance in preparation of financial statements
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time).

For all periods up to and including the year ended 3l March 2018, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP or previous
GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 are the first the Company has
prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCD instruments and other financial assets held for trading all of which have
been measured at fair value. Further the carrying values ofrecognised assets and liabilities that are hedged
items in fair value hedges, and otherwise carried at amortised cost, are adjusted to record changes in fair
value attributable to the risks that are being hedged. The Standalone financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupees (INR).

Presentation of financial statements
The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to
having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being
contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all ofthe following
circumstances:

a. The normal course ofbusiness
b. The event ofdefault
c. The event of insolvency or bankuptcy of the Group and./or its counterparties

3. ignilicant accounting policies

a) Use of estimates, judgments and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure ofcontingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the are revised and
future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the 's best knowledge of

could result in theevents and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and es

b)

qa
ul

s
6;"

requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of future



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerly know n as Ke ertan a Financial Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the ended March 31,2019 'Amounl in unless otherwise

In parlicular, information about significant areas of estimation, unceltainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

i) Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities:
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discounr rate,
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

ii) Fair value measurement:
When the fair values offinancial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations ofinputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

(iii) Impairnent of loan portfolio
Judgment is required by management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining an impairment allowance for loans and advances. In estimating these cash flows, the
Company makes judgments about the borrower's financial situation. These estimates are based on
assumptions about a number of factors such as credit quality, level of arrears etc. and actual results may
differ, resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance.

(iv) Provisions other than impairment on loan portfolio
Provisions are held in respect of a range of future obligations such as employee entitlements and
litigation provisions. Some of the provisions involve significant judgment about the likely outcome of
various events and estimated future cash flows. The measurement of these provisions involves the
exercise of management judgments about the ultimate outcomes of the transactions. Payments that are
expected to be incurred after more than one year are discounted atarate which reflects both current
interest rates and the risks specific to that provision.

(v) Other estimates:
These include contingent liabilities, useful lives oftangible and intangible assets etc.

b) Recognition of income and expense
The Company earns revenue primarily from giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

(i) Interest income and expense:
Interest revenue is recognized using the effective interest method (EIR). The effective interest method
calculates the amortized cost of a financial instrument and allocates the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future
cash paymcnts or rcccipts through the expected lifc ofthe financial instrurncnl. or, when appropriate, a
shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. The calculation takes into
account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and
includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly athibutable to the instrument and are an integral
part ofthe EIR, but not future credit losses.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carry amount of financial
assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a hnancial asset becomes
therefore, regarded as 'Stage 3', the Company calculates interest incomeRA::; ,

Itut

interest rate to the net amortized cost ofthe financial asset. Ifthe financial



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(formerlyknown as Keerlana Financial Limited) 

r

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March3l,2019 (Amount in Rupees unless othenuise stated)

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the
financial liability and anorlized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These
include fees and commissions payable to arrangers and other expenses such as external legal costs,
provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

(ii) Dividend income:

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which
is generally when the shareholders approve the dividend.

(iii) Other income and expense
All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they occur.

c) Property, plant and equipment(PPE) and intangible asset

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
PPE are stated at cost (including incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use) less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure related to PPE is capitalized only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of
item can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off as and when
incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognized.

Intangible Asset
Intangible assets represents software expenditure which is stated at cost less accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses.

d) Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation
i. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment provided on a v,ritten down value method at the

rates arived based on useful life ofthe assets, prescribed under Schedule II ofthe Act, which also
represents the estimate of the useful life of the assets by the management..

ii. Property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs.5,000 individually are fully depreciated in the year
ofpurchase.

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its Property, plant and
L.-

Amortization
Intangible assets are amortized at a rate of 25.89% per annum on a
from the date that they are available for use.

"Wri Value" method,
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

e) Impairment
i) Overview of principles for measuring expected credit loss ('ECL') on financial assets.
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company is required to measure expected credit losses on its
financial instruments designated at amortized cost. Accordingly, the Company is required to determine
lifetime losses on financial instruments where credit risk has increased significantly since its
origination. For other instruments, the Company is required to recognize credit losses over next 12
month period. The Company has an option to determine such losses on individual basis or collectively
depending upon the nature ofunderlying portfolio. The Company has a process to assess credit risk of
all exposures at each year end as follows:

Stage I
These represent exposures where there has not been a signiflrcant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date. The Company has assessed that all standard
exposures (i.e. exposures with no overdues) and exposure upto 30 day overdues fall under this
category. In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company measures ECL on such assets over next 12
months.

Stage II
Financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are
classified under this stage. Based on empirical evidence, significant increase in credit risk is witnessed
after the overdues on an exposure exceed for a period more than 30 days. Accordingly, the Company
classifies all exposures with overdues exceeding 30 days at each reporting date under this Stage. The
Company measures lifetime ECL on stage II loans.

Stage III
All exposures having overdue balances for a period exceeding 90 days are considered to be defaults
and are classified under this stage. Accordingly, the Company measures lifetime losses on such
exposure. Interest revenue on such contracts is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortized cost (net of impairment allowance) instead of the gross carrying amount.

Methodology for calculating ECL
The Company determines ECL based on a probability weighted outcome of factors indicated below to
measure the shortfalls in collecting contractual cash flows. The Company does not discount such
shortfalls considering relatively shorter tenure of loan contracts.

Key factors applied to determine ECL are outlined as follows:

Probability of default (PD) - The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a
given time horizon.
Exposure at default (EAD) - It represents an estimate of the exposure of the Company at a future date
after considering repayments by the counterparty before the default event occurs.

Loss given default (LGD) - It represents an estimate of the loss expected to be incurred when the event
ofdefault occurs.

Forward lookin g information
While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments
occurring in the economy and market it operates in. On a periodic basis, the Company analyses if there
is any relationship between key economic trends like GDP, Unemployment rates, lcnchmark rates set
by the Reserve Bank of India, inflation etc. with the estimate of PD, LGD determjrfed by the Company
based on its internal data. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD rates by the/Company may not be
always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays are embedded in thy'methodology tb reflect
such macro-economic trends reasonably.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Write-offs
Loans are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-off s. All such
write-off are charged to the Profit and Loss Statement. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans
are credited to the statement ofprofit and loss.

ii) Non financial assets
The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/extemal factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying
amount ofan asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater ofthe assets,
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised canying
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

f) Operating Lease
Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest
with the lessor are recognized as operating leases. The Company has ascertained that the paymenrs ro
the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the
lessor's expected inflationary cost increases and therefore, the lease paynents are recognized as per
terms of the lease agreement in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

g) Retirement and Employee benefits
The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are classified
as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Under a defined contribution plan, the
Company's only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and
investment risks fall on the employee. The expenditure for defined contribution plans is recognized as
expense during the period when the employee provides service. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the
Company's obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees. The related actuarial and
investment risks fall on the Company. The present value of the defined benefit obligations is calculated
using the projected unit credit method.

The Company operates following employee benefit plans:
i) Employee Provident Fund
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as expenditure when an employee renders the
related service.

ii) Gratuity
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment
to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and
years of employment with the Company. The Company's obligation in respect of the gratuity plan,
which is a defined beneht plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation.
Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan
assets above or below the discount rate is recognized, as part of re-measurement of net defined liability
or asset through other comprehensive income. An actuarial valuation invfves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the ities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to

ptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
in these assumptions.
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Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the retum on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to proflt and loss in subsequent periods.

iii) Leaves
The service rules of the Company do not provide for the carry forward of the accumulated leave
balance and leaves to credit of employees are encashed periodically at average gross salary.

iv) Employee Stock Option Plan
Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments in form of employee stock options, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions). The cost of equity-settled
transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using the Black Scholes
valuation model. That cost is recognized in employee benefits expense, together with a corresponding
increase in Stock Option Outstanding reserves in Other equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense
recognized as at the beginning and end ofthat period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.
Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Company's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The dilutive
effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

h) Income taxes

Current Taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with The Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates andtax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting
date. Current income tax relating to items recogrrized outside profit or loss is recognized outside proht
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Defeted Taxes
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases ofassets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporling pu{poses.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
o Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, ar the time of the hansaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

o In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no lonser ble that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part ofthe deferred tax asset tobe ry'ilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to thy'extent that it becomes
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 3lr2019 (Amount in Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current and deferred taxes are recognized as income tax benefits or expenses in the income statement
except for tax related to the FVOCI instruments. The Company also recognizes the tax consequences of
payments and issuing costs, related to financial instruments that are classified as equity, directly in
equity.

The Company only off-sets its deferred tax assets against liabilities when there is both a legal right to
offset and it is the Company's intention to settle on a net basis.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current
tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recognized for MAT credit available only to the extent that it
is probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period
for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes
MAT credit as an asset, it is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as
part of deferred tax asset. The Company reviews the "MAT credit entitlement" asset at each reporting
date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that it will pay normal tax
during the specified period.

Earnings per share (EPS)
The Company reports basic and diluted eamings per share in accordance with Ind AS33 on Eamings
per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing th€ net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number ofequity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either
reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the level of provision
by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to un-winding of discount over passage of time is
recognized within finance costs.

Contingent liabilities and assets
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fufure events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and existence will be
events not whollyconfirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain

i)

i)

k)

within the control of the entity. The Company does not have any assets in the financial
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l) Financiallnstruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument ofanother entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial Assels - All financial assets are recogrized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognized on the trade dale,i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
o Loan Portfolio at amortized cost
. Loan Portfolio at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCD
o Investment in equity instruments and mutual funds at fair value through profit or loss
o Other financial assets at amortized cost

Loan Poftfolio at amortized cost:
Loan Portfolio is measured at unortized cost where:
o contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of

principal and interest (SPPI)on the principal amount outstanding; and
. are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual

cash flows.

Loan Portfolio at FVOCI:
Loan Portfolio is measured at FVOCI where:
. contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of

principal and interest (SPPD on the principal amount outstanding; and
r the financial asset is held within a business model where objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

Business model: The business model reflects how the Company manages the assets in order to
generate cash flows. That is, where the Company's objective is solely to collect the contractual cash
flows from the assets, the same is measured at amorlized cost or where the Company's objective is to
collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets, the same is
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCD. If neither of these is applicable
(e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of
'other' business model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows (i.e. measured at
amortized, cost) or to collect contractual cash flows and sell (i.e. measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income), the Company assesses whether the financial instruments' cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (the'SPPI test'). In making this assessment, the Company
considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arangement i.e.
interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks
and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms
introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the
related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. The amortized cost,
as mentroned above, rs computed usrng the ettbctive interest rate method.

After initial measurement, these financial assets are subsequently measured at arnortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an part of the EIR.
The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. fhe losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

surement of credit impairment is based on the three-stage
Impairment of financial assets (refer note 3(e)).
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Effective interest method - The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost
of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the ratethat exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part ofthe effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorler period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. The amortized cost of the financial asSet is adjusted if
the Company revises its estimates of payments or receipts. The adjusted amortized cost is calculated
based on the original or latest re-estimated EIR and the change is recorded as 'Interest and similar
income' for financial assets. Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for loan portfolio other
than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL

Equity ihstruments and Mulual Funds
Equity instruments and mutual funds included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the Profit and Loss Statement.
Financial liabilities

Initial Measurernent
Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. All financial liabilities are
recognized initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and borrowings and payables, net ofdirectly
attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual cash flows from the asset expire or it
transfers its rights to receive contractual cash flows from the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability.

A financial liability is derecognized from the balance sheet when the Company has discharged its
obligation or the contract is cancelled or expires.

m) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date using various
valuation techniques.

Fair value is the price at the measurement date, at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a
liability, in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Company's accounting policies require, measurement of certain financial / non-hnancial assets and
liabilities at fair values (either on a recurring or non-recurring basis). Also, the fair values of financial
instruments measured at amortized cost are required to be disclosed in the said financial statements.

The Company is required to classifo the fair valuation method of the financial / non-financial assets and
liabilities, either measured or disclosed at fair value in the flrnancial statements, using a three level fair-
value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurement).

Accordingly, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the I statements are
within the fair value hierarchy described as follows:

I financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabili
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access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are
sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance
sheet date.

Level 2 /inancial instrumenls - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the
entire period of the instrument's life.

Level 3 financial instruments - include one or more unobservable input where there is little
market activity for the asset/liability at the measurement date that is significant to the
measurement as a whole.

n) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shon-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
chanses in value,
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4: Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

On current accounts

Deposit with original maturity of less than three
months

5: Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposit with remaining maturity of less than 12 months

Deposit with remaining maturity of more than 12 months

Margin money deposit (refer note below)

6: Loan portfolio

Secured, considered good*

Less: Impairment Loss allowance

Unsecured, considered good*

Less: Impairment Loss allowance

Considered doubtful**

Less: Impairment Loss allowance

Total

Above amount includes

Loans provided in India

Loans provided outside India

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

March 31,2019 March 31,2018 April 1,2017

4,72r

1,08,79,443

10,000

2,6s,09,959

437

1,95,05,720

1,08,84,164 2,65,19,959 1,95,06,157

37,77,370 2,06,77,130 1,07,83,090

37,77,370 2,06,77,130 1,07,93,090

Note: Represent margin money deposits placed to avail term loans from banks and non banking financial companies

March 31.2019 March 31.2018 April 1,2017

6,37,55,51_5

96,00,48,r22

(r,06,259)

r,16,37,7s-7

r,01,18,25,433

(5,05,1 l7)

2,70,836

(2,6s,05r)

46,96,s7,621

(35,758)

12,602

(10,984)

1,02,36,91,378 1,02,29,63,858 46,96,23,491

r,02,36,97,378 r,02,29,63,858 46,96,23,48_r

1,02,36,97378 I,02,29,63,859 46,96,23,491

* Represents assets classified under stage I and stage II in accordance with Company's asset classification policy [refer note 3(e)(i)]
** Represents assets classified under stage III in accordance with Company's asset classification policy [refer note 3(e)(i)]

The table below discloses credit qualitv of the Companv's exposures (net of impairment loss allowance) as at reporting date:
Portfofio classification as at March 31.2019
Particulars Stase I Stase tr Staee III Total
Considered sood

New oortfolio 1.02_36-70.620 26.758 r.02.36-97.378
Considered doubtful

New nortfirlin

fotal 1,02,36,70,620 26.7s8.18 1.0236.97.378

s#o- t

Portfolio classification as at March 31
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Note:-
a) ECL for Stage I has increased primarily on account ofnew assets originated during the year.
b) ECL for stage II has increased primarily on account ofnew assets originated during the year.
c) ECL for stage III has declined primarily on account of write offand recoveries/collections made by the Company during the year.

Portl'olio classilrcation as at 201
Particulars Stase I Staee II Staee III Total
lonsidered sood

New oorffolio 46.94.97.923 1.23.941 46.96.21.864
Considered doubtful

New oortfolio 1.618 1.618
Total 46.94.97.923 1.23.941 1.618 46.96.23.481

Gross Portlblio Movement lbr the vear ended Marc I
Particulars Stase I Staee fI Stase III Total
Sross carrvins amount as at Aoril 0 l. 20 | 8 1.02.33.76.920 73.528 2-70.836 r.02.37.21.284
New assets orieinated 2,43.95.00.189 2.43.95.00. r 89
Assets reoaid (2.43.90.74.475' 1.14.875) (5-63-246 (2.43.97.52.596'
Write offs 42-351 2.92.410 3.34.761
lnter-stage movements

Stage I
Staee II Ar.9t7\ 41.917
Staee III
lross carryins arnount as at March 31.2019 l-02-37 -60-717 42"92r 1.02.38.03-638

ross Portfolio Movement
Particulars Stage I Staee II Stase III Total
Gross carrvins arnount as at Aoril 0l- 2017 46.95.33.464 r.23-941 12.602 46.96.70.007
New assets orieinated 1"86.r3.91.923 r.86.13.91.923
Assets reoaid 1.30-72.64.381 03-629' (52.635' 1.30.73.40.646\
Write offs
Inter-stage movements
Staee I
Staee II l 7-5901 r7.590
Stase III (2.66.496' (44-374' 3.10.870
Gross carrvins amount as at March 3 l. 20 I 8 r.02.33.76.920 73.528 2.70.836 r.02.37.2r.284

20 9:-
Particulars Staee I Stase II Stase III Total
Onenins Balance 4.49.407 55-709 2.65.051 7.70.167
Provision made/ (reversed) durins the vear (3.59.31l (23.643' (3.82.9551

Write off 15.903) (2.65.0sr (2.80.954)

Slosine Balance 90.096 16.163 1.06.2s9

LCL movement durins the vear ended March 3l
Particulars Stase I Staee II Staee III Iotal
Joenine Balance 35.758 r0.984 46.743
Provision made/ (reversed) durins the vear 4.r3.649 55.709 2-54.066 7.23.425
Write off
Closins Balance 4.49.407 55.709 2.65.051 7.70.161
Note:-
a) ECL for Stage I has increased primarily on account ofnew assets originated during the year.

b) ECL for stage II has primarily on account ofnew assets originated during the year.

c) ECL for stage III has primarily on account ofnew assets originated during the year.
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7: Other financial assets (at amortised cost)
A. Security deposits

Unsecured, considered good

B. Other assets

Term deposits placed with non banking financial companies#

Other assets

Total (A+B)

# Represent margin money deposits placed to avail

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

March 31.2019 March 31.2018 Aoril 1.2017

8,13,850 8,72,048 7,54,588

8,13,850 8,72,049 7,54,588

1,78,15,378 38,83, I 5 I

1,78,15,378 38,83,151

1186,29,228 47,55,199 7,54,599

term loans from non bankine financial institutions

8: Deffered tax assets (net)

Effects ofdeferred tax assets/ liabilities :

Deferred tax assets

Impairment of financial instruments

Differences of written down value of Property, plant and equipment

Others

Defened tax liabilities

Unrealised gain on investments

Others

Net deferred tax assets(liabilities)

30,943

6,12,269

7,93,050

2,24,273

3,73,25r

6,65,360

13,481

76,931

4,72,786

14,36,262 12,62,894 5,63,199

14,36,262 12,62,894 5,63,199

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tar< assets and curent tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and defened tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

9: Property. plant and equipment (Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Furniture &

Fixtures
Office Equipment Computers Total

Gross block (at cost)
At April | 2Al7
Addition

12,39,169
5,93,193

2,22,850
1,99,690

t0,43,706
9,18,561

)s 05 1)5
t7,11,444

At March 31 2018 18,32,362 4,22,540 19.62,267 42,17,169
Addition 3,25,513 2,11,026 4.90.664 10.27.20{
Disposals 1,67 "284 1,87,474 s,22.375 8.77.r33
At March 312019 19.90.591 4.46.092 19.30.5s6 43.67.239
Depreciation
At April | 2017
Charge for the year

1,62,067 7,10,500
84,669 4,97,706

Disposals----
AtMarch3l20l8 13,77,173 2,46,736 12,08,206 28.32,115
Charge for the year 4,25,876 1,61,043 5,25,302 11,12,161
Disposals 58,611 68,073 3.31,889 4,5g,573
AtMarch3l 2019 17,44,378 3,39,706 14,01,619 34,85,703
Net Carrying Amount
At April 012017 723 783 3 7.64.712

8,68,446
5,08,727

4,55,789',
2,46,212

1,75,904

r,06,3 86

7,54,061

5,28,937

17,47,013
10,91,r02

13,85,054

8,81,535

At March 31 2018

At March 31 2019

Intanqible assets

Particulars TotalComputer
Software

Gross block (at cost)
At April I 2017
Addition

3,48,960 3,48,960
11.32.428 11.32.428

At March 31 2018 14.81.388 14.8r388
Addition
Disposals 29.928 29.928
At March 312019 14.sr.460 14.s[.460
Amortization
At April I 2017 1,46,576
Charge for the year 3,29,019

1,46,576
3,29.0r9

At March 31 2018 4.75.595 4.75.595
Charge for the year

Disposals
3,05,643

9,810
3,05,643

9.810
At March 312019 7.71.428 7,71,428
Net Carrying Amount
At April 0l2017 2.02384 2.02.384
At March 31 2018 10.05,793 10.05.793
At March 312019 6,80,032 6,80.032



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

10: Other non financial assets

Unsecured, considered good

Interest receivable on assigned loans

Inswance claim receivables

Other receivables

Other deposits

l1: Borrowings (at amortised Cost)

(a) Borrowings (other than debt securities)

Term loans

Secured

lndian rupee loan from banks

lndian rupee loan liom non-banking financial companies

Unsecured

Loans from Directors

Advances from related parties(unsecured)

Advance from related party carries interest rate @15%p a with monthly
interest repayment
Total Borrowings (other than debt securities)

(b) Subordinated Liabilities (at amortised cost)

Indian rupee loan from related party (unsecured)

Loans from related party carries interest rate @ l5%p a with monthly interest
repayment

OCCRPS

Total Subordinated Liabilities

Above amount includes

Secured borrowings*

Unsecured borrowings 
*

Net amount

Bonowings in India
Borowings outside India
Total

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

March 31. 2019 March 31,2018 April 1, 2017

14,57,178

t2,87,731

18,000

25,46,596

20,56,376

l, I 1,09,305

33,02,463

3,64,356

5,86,432

3,240

27,62,909 1,57,12,277 42,56,491

22,49,06,645

27,55,22,008

14,88,35,449

12,13,r4,739

33,43,07,685

20,28,09,400

55,81,202

'.,''0,,0:

50,04,28,653 60,44,57,873 20,87,70,951

13,77,636 25,28,5t,295 14,68,03,572

1,50,83,330

13,77,636 25,28,51,295 16,18,86,902

22,49,06,645

27,68,99,644

27,01,50,1 88

58,7 1,58,980

20,83,90,602

76,22,67,251

50,18,06,289 85,73,09,168 37,06,57,954

50,18,06,289 85,73,09,168 37,06,57,854

s0,18.06.289 85.73.09.168 37.06.s7.8s4

* The secured borrowings are secured by hypothecation ofbook debts and margin money deposits.

# The unsecured borrowings are in the nature ofsubordinated debt and advance from related parties



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITEI)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

l2: Other financial liabilities
Employee benefi ts payable

Expenses payable

Payable on assigred loans

Insurance premium collected and claims payable

Premium payable on redemption ofpreference shares

Sundry creditors

13: Current tax liabilies (net)
Provision for tax (net of advance tax)

14: Provisions
Provision for gratuity (net ofcontribution)

Provision for doubtfull claims

Provision for theft & fraud

Provision for dividend

Provision for DDT

15: Other non financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 April 1.2017
64,89,832
20,?6,s73

8,69,7r0

1,53,656

57,79,411
4,20,930

3,46,87,0s7

5,58,788

40,346

11,13,542

36,69,001
5,28,547

1,90,87,581

2,07,996

30,135

95,89,771 4,25,39,974 2,35.23.250

5,90,55,867 1,79,45,851 1,36,23,527

5.90.ss.867 1.79.45.851 1.36.23.s27

t,'79,639

12,449

2,45,431

1,20,473

t,62,138

25,566

1,00,000

15,083

3,071

1,92,088 3,65,904 3,05.858

t4,20,080 3t,66,r14 2,98,730

14.20,080 31.66.114 2.98.730

foJ
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CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)
As at As at As at

Securities premium
Balance as per the last financial statements

Add: Premium on issue of equity shares

Less: Utilized for premium on redemption of Preference shares
Closing balance

General reserae

Share options outstanding reserve

Capital redemption reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements

Add: Addition during the year

Closing balance

Statutory reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements

Add: Amount transferred from surplus of profit and loss

Closing balance

Deficit in the statement of profit and loss

Balance as per the last financial statements

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other Comprehensive Income
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve [@20o/o of profit after tax as required by
Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act, 19341

Less: Preference shares Redemption
Less: Dividend on OCCRPS
Less: Dividend Distribution tax
Less: Dividend on Equity sharees

Net deficit in the statement of profit and loss

Total other equify

_ (9,81,062)

95,03,150
23,10,97,930

r,04,84,212

24,06,01,090 9s,03.150 r.04.84.2r2

52,086

1,14,504

t,67,60,780

52,086

7,60,780
1,60,00,000

52,086

7,60,780

1,67,60,790 1,67,60,790 7.60.780

2,94,29,381 1,40,29,308
2,76,00,203 r,s4,00,073
5,70,29,594 2,94,29,381 1,40,29.308

8,76,47,816
13,79,05,405

95,612
(2,76,00,203)

(r,20,0r,169)
(5,83,84,812)

4,31,56,s67
7,58,59,38 l

13,787
(r,s4,00,073)

(r,60,00,000)
15,083

3,07r

12,76,62,649 9,76,47,916 4,31,56,567

44,22,20,683 14,33,93,213 6,84,82,953



CRISS FINANCIAL IIOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31.2019

(Amount in ruDees unless othevise stafed\

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31.2019 March 31.2018

l8: Interest Income
Measured at amortised cost
Interest on Dortfolio loans

Interest on margin money depositsr

+Represent margin money deposits placed to avail term loans from banks and non baking financial companies

19: Others
Recovery against loans witten off

20: Other incom€
Income from assignment ofloans
Incentive Income
Advertisement Income
Miscellaneous income

2l: Finance cost
Interest

On Bonowings (other thar debt securities)
On sub-ordinated liabilities
On income tax

Other finalce cost

22: Impairment otr fitrancial instruments
Measured at amortised cost
Impairment on portfolio loans
Portfolio loans written off

23: Emplovee benefits expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund and Other Funds
Expenses on Employee Stock Option Plar
Staffwelfare expenses

24: Other expenses
Rent (refer note 35)
Rates and taxes
Bank charges
Office maintenance

Repairs and maintenarce

ElectriciW charges
Travelling and conveyance expenses

Communication expenses

Credit bueau expenses

PrintinA and stationery
Legal and professional charges
Auditors remuneration (refer details below)
Medical Expenses

Professional tax charges
Advertisement expenses

Other provisions ald write off
GST Late filing Fee

NSDL Joining and custodian fee
Debit Balances written off
Loss fiom theft & Fraud

Net loss on derecognition ofplant, property and equipment
CSR Expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

32,61,04,076 19,91,25,536
13,54,292 13.72-536

32,74.58.368 20.04.98.072

2.35-442
2.35.442

6,00,00,000

1.70-222

Rt ?1 {{l
24,20,213

2,25,00,000
72237

6,01,70,222 3.32,66.000

12,3 1,67,888
2,13,99,285

4 1,68,865
2,69,028

4,88,72,022
3,34,88,120

6 qqs

14,90,0s,066 8.2t,67.137

(6,51,r67)
3.34-761

7,r 1,096

(3,16,406) 7,11.096

4,57,09,808
5 a4 qq6

r,14,504
4.18.171

3,72,68,012
7,13,38 1

60-838
4.68.97.479 3.80.42.231

16,98,799
13,332

q qs 1rq
12,02,830

25,348
s,21,492
3,13,724

6,471
1,37,796
5,84,087
A lt )'70.

4,30,400
30,000

7,500
1,00,558

(1.08,024)
6,500

22,250

27,44,882
22,405

6,19,s67
8,87,921

t7 Rqo

4,52,261
4,09,156

26,859
1,58,052
4,04,254

50,166
2,36,775

5,000
48,r40
94,908



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Not€s to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31. 2019

(Amount in ruDees udess othevise stated)

For tbe yeor ended For the year ended
March 31.2019 March 31.2018

Payment to auditors
As auditor:
Audit fee

Certification fee
Out ofpocket expenses

25: Income Tax Expense
A. Income tax expense in the statenent of profit and loss consists of:
Current Income Tax:
Income Tax
Deffered Tax
Income Tax expense reported in the statemetrt of profit or loss

Income tax recognised in otber comprehensive income
Defened tax arising on income and expenses recognised in other cornprehensive income
Total

Profit before tax
Enacted tax rates in India
Computed tax expense
Effect of:
Non-deductible exoenses

Additional Deductions as Der Income tax
Brought Forward Losses
Others
Total Income Tax expense

26: Iarning per Share
Net profit after tax as per Statement ofProfit and Loss
Less: Dividend on CCPS (all class) & OCRPS (all series) and tax tnereon
Net profit for calculation of basic eaminqs per sbare

Net Drofit as abov€
Add: Dividend on CCPS (all class) & OCRPS (all series) and tax thereon
Net profit for calculation of diluted earninqs per sbare

Calculation ofweiqhted averaqe number ofequity shares for basic EPS
Equitv shares
Opening No. ofshares
Add: Fresh issued during the year

Effect of dilution
Conversion ofOCRPS
Conversion of share warrants
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS

Basic earnings per share (In rupees)
Diluted eamitrgs per sbare (In rupees)
Nominal value per share: Rs.l0 (Previous year: Rs.10)

4,28,900

l -500

2,36,775

4,30.400 2.36.775

5.68,91,609 3,43,02,382
o.12-655\ (7.05.348)

5.66.78.9s4 3.35.97.034

39,281 5-664

5.67.18.23s 3.36.02.698

B. The reconciliation between the provision of Income Tax of the company and amoutrts computed by applying the Indian statutory Income Tax
rate to profit before taxes is as follows:

19,47,19,252
29 12Yo

5,67,02,246

t2,13,97s
(4,67,ss4\

(7.30.433)

10,94,75,866

29 12%
3,r8,79,372

28,298
(4,67,554)

21.62.s82
5.67.18.23s 3.36.02.598

13,79,0s,405

13,79,0s,40s

13,79,0s,405

r3,79,05,40s

29,56,193
4-81-617

7,s8,s9,381

7,58,59,381

7.58,59,381

7,58,59,381

29,56,193

34.37.810 29.56.193

3,67,785

34.37.810 33.23.978



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financia l St tements for the vear ended Ma rch 31, 2019

27: Segment Repofting
The Company operates in a single business segment i.e. lending to customers who have similar risks and retums for the purpose oflnd AS 108 on 'Operating Segments' notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The Company opeiates in a single
geogaphical segment i e domestic.

28:Relatedpafiiesunder IndAS24withwhomtransactionshavetakenplaceduringtheyear,
L Holding Company
Spandana Sphoorty Financial Limited (w.e f. Dec 27,2018)

IL Other related party in accordance with Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place
a) Abhiram Marketing Services Limited
b) Spandana Rural and Urban Development Organization
c) Spandana Mutual Benefit Trust
d)Spandana Employee Welfare Trust.

e)Spandana Sphoorty Chit funds Private Limited.

IIL Key Management Personnel
a) Mrs. Padmaja Gangireddy - Director
b) Mr Raju Dhantu - Director
c) Mr Abdul Feroz Khan - Director

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

Kelated party transactions during the year:

S. Nc Related Party Nature of Transactions

Transactions
during year

ended March 31,

Transactions
during year

ended March 31,
tnl a

Pavable)/Receivable

March 31,2019 March 31.2018 April l, 2Ol1

I

Portfolio Sold 23.0r.04.4s(
lXDenSeS relmbursement I.86.415 1,09,791 (16.847' (8,437 2,59,65(
Proceeds from issue ofEquity 2s,00.00.10(

Advance received 1,18,64,27,191 38.s 1.00.00(
Q7,29,27,r98 (33,10,00,000)

Advance repaid 1,24,45.00.00( 5,41,00,00t
Interest paid 9,13,01,75t l -35-83-381 (2s,94,810 (33,07,685'

2
Spandana Sphoorty Chit Funds Private Jnsecured Loan received 12.50-00(
Limited Interest paid 84,384 94t

J Ahhiram Merkefino Seruicec T imiled

)urchases 3,66,s4( 86,86: Nil
Commission Received 1,19,37,O2E 44,8s,08t 9.04.26C 8,0s,081 NI
Incentive Received 24,20,2ra 28,07,44',

Unsecured Loan received 7,50,00,00(

Interest paid 4,04.79:

Others 9,48,91,483 3,24,19,71( (t,3s,709 (2,82,1s0' 8" 13J

4 Mrs. Padmaja Gangireddy Rent paid 6,72,00( s ?, <nf (81,s57

5 Mr.Raju Dhantu
Unsecured Loan received 3,78,00(
Interest paid a oaa 2,6r(

6
Spandana Rural and Urban Development
)rganizaton

Jnsecured Loan received 21,84,00,00( 12,1r,49,941 (12,20,49,941 (s,83,s2,019'

hterest paid t,41,94,J5: 1,44,95,12t (e,4s,342 (12,99,s77 (7,07,917"

7 ipandana Mutual Benofit Trust
Jnsecured Loan received 5,19,00,00( 1,84,09,20( (4,82,00,000 (6,48,13,408)

Interest paid 27,70,68: 90,97,t05 (r,66,240 (s,27,302. (6,90,726

8 Spandana Employee Welfare Tnrst
Unsecured Loan received 88,00,00( 11,01,99,971 (7,99,00,0001 (2,20,00,000

Interest paid 44,34,24: 98,9s,891 Q,66,0s4' (8,74,474 Q.,3e,s04

*Transactions during the year are shown net ofsewice taxlGST and inclusive ofTDS



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended Marcb 31. 2019

(Amotmt in rupees unless otheMise stated)

Themarragementassessedthatcarringvalueoffmcialassetexceptloanportfoliomdfnmcialliabilitiesexceptbonowings(othertharrdebtsecuities)approxima
lugely due to short tem maturities of these instruments.

3l: Fair Value Hierachv ofassets and liabilities
Fair value measurement
I. The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and tiabilities as at March 31, 2019 is as follows:

30: Fair Value

Financial Assets messured st cost

Balances other than cash ard cash

4'7.55.199

Particulam At amortized cost
Carruins Valrre Feir Vchre Level -1 Level 2 Level-3 Total

fonowinos rOfher fh2n T)ehf Secr;ties\ 50.04.28-653 50.21.22.826 50.2r.22-826 50.21 22 A26
lrrhardinarp/ T iahiliripc 13 71 631 13,77,636 13.77.636 rs.77.636
[otal 50.1E.06.289 s0.3s.00.462 50.35.00.462 50.3 162

I. Tbe carrying amount and fair value measurement hiererchy for assets and liabilitis as at March 31, 2018 is as follows:

Pa rticulars At amortized cost
Csrruino Vllrre Fair Value Level -l Level 2 Level-3 Total

Bonowinss (Olher thm Debt Secuities) 60.44.57.873 60 50 90 054 60.50.90.054 60.50.90.054
ubordinated Liabilities 25,28, v) 25.28.51.295 )a t95 2s,28,51.29s

fotal 85.73 l6E E5.79.41.J49 85.79.41.349 85.79.41.349

II. The carrying amount and fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 1 April 2017 is as follow:



CRISS FINAI\ICIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Amount in rupees unless othewise stated)

Valuation technique ued
For Loan Portfolio
Thescheduledftuecashfows(includingprincipa|andinterest)aediscountedusingthelendingrateprevailingasattheBalancesheetdate.Thediscountingfactorisapped
assuming the casMows will be evenly received in a month Further the overdue cashflows upto 90 Days (upto stage 2) are discounted assrtrning they will be received in the third
month. Fairvalue ofcasbflows for stage 3 loms are assumed as carrying value less provision for expected credit loss

For Borrowing
The fair value offixed rate bonowings in detemined by discounting expected futue contactual cash flows using cunent meket interest rate being charged for new borrowings. The
fair value offloating rate bonowing is deemed to equal its carrying value.

32: Capital Management
TheConpany'sobjectiveforcapitalnanagementistomaximizeshareholders'vaIue,safeguardbusinesscontinuity,meettheregulatorrequirementandsupportthegrowof$e
Company. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operating plals and long-tem and other stategic investment plans. The fimding requirements are met
througl bonowings, retained eamings and operating cash flows generated.

AsanNBFC,theRBIrequiresustomaintainaminimunrcapitaltoriskweightedassetsratio(..CRAR,')consistingofTierImdTierIIcapitalofl5%ofouraggregateriskweited
assets Further, the total of ou Tier II capital cannot exceed 100% of ou Tier I capital at any point of time. The capital management process of the company ensues to maintain a
healthy CRAR at all the times.
The company has a board approved policy on resouce plming which states that the resource plming of the company shall be based on its Asset Liabili$ Matching (ALM)
requirement.Thepolicyofthecompanyonresouceplanningwilla|socovertheobjectivesoftheregulatorrequirement.Thepolicyprescribestlesoucesoffnds'esholdfor
mix from various souces, tenue, manner of raising the fimds etc.

33: First Time adoption
The Company has prepaed its Ind AS complimt finalcial statements for year ended on March 31,2019, the compuative year ended on March 31, 2018 and m opening Ind AS
balacesheetasatApril1'2017(thedateofnansition),asdescribedinthesrumaryofsignifcantaccountingpoliciesThisnoteexplainstheprincipaladjustnentsmadebye
Company in restating its previous GAAP financial statements, including the balmce sheet as at April l, 2017 and the financial statements as at and for the yer ended Mrch 31,
2018

Exemption availed:

Optional exemption
1 Lease anangements
AppendixCtoIndAS|7requiresentitytoassesswhethercontractora[aIrgenentcontainsalease.Inaccordmcewithsame,tlrisassessementshorrldbecmiedoutateinceDdon
of mmgement However, the compmy has used exemption mder Ind AS 101 md assessed all mangements based on conditions in place as on date of hansition.

2 Property, plant, equipment & intmgible assets

On tansition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as at 3 I March 20 I 7, measued
as per the previous GAAP md use that carrying value as the deemed cost ofthe property, plalt and equipment and intargible assets as on lst April 2017.

Mandatory exemptions
1 Estimates
An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of tmsition to Ild AS shall be consistent with estimates made for tle same date in accordhnce with previous GAAp (afer
adjustnents to reffect any difference in accormting policies).

2 Classification and measurement offinmcial assets

IndASl0lrequiresanentitytoassessclassifcationandmeasurementoffnancialassets(investmentindebtinsfunents)onthebasisofthefactsandcircrmstanc
date of trmsition to IND AS.

ToaJ equity as per IGAAP
Borrowings

Measurement of finmcial liabilities at amortised cost usine EIR method

Loan Portfolio

Measurement offinancial assets at anortised cost using EIR method

Interest income recognised on Stage III lom porlfolio

Measuement of expected credit losses

Others

Recognition ofDefered Tax Asset

Income fiom assisrment of loans

B

B

5,60,920

(71,27,789)

t2,741

18,28,250

54,503

28,37,161

9,81,51,892

13,81,524

(33,11,s22)

4t2
16,03,660

(3,75,083)

17,47,89,351

Total equity as per Ind -AS 17.29.55-143 9-80-44-883
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(Amourt in rupees urless othewise stated)

Reconciliation of Profit under Ind AS and Indian GAAP March 31. 2018

Profit as per Indian GAAP

Loan Portfolio

Measuement of finmcial assets at amortised cost using EIR method

Measurement of expected credit losses

Interest income recognised on Stage III loan

Borrowings

Measuement of financial liabilities at amortised

Others

Recognition ofDefened Tax Asset

Income from assigment of loans

7,70,00,367

(38,10,267)

2,36,919

(8,20,604)

4,29,s86

28,37,167

Total Profit as per Ind -AS 7,58,73,r68

Notes to Reconciliation of the Indian GAAP and Ind AS:

Loan portfolio
A. Under Ildim GAAP, lom processing fees received in comection with loans portfolio is recognized upfiont and credited to profit or loss for the year.

Under Ind AS, lom processing fee is credited to profit ard loss using the effective interest rate method The mamortized portion ofloan processing fee is adjusted from the loan
portfolio

B. Under the Ind AS, allowmce is provided on the loans given to customers is provided on the basis ofpercentage obtained by evaluating the loss of the previom years and
management expectations for future losses. Under the Indim GAAP the allowance is provided on tbe basis of percentage decided by the mmagement Under krd AS, interest income
is also recognized on Stage III loms, wherem under Indian GAAP, interest is not recognized on Stage III loans

Bonowings
C Under Indian GAAP, transaction costs incuned in corurection with bonowings are recognised upfront and charged to proft or loss for the year. Under Ind AS, trmsaction costs are
included in the initial recognition amourt offinancial liability and charged to profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares (OCRPS)
D Under Indian GAAP, the Compmy had recognised balance in OCRPS as equity Based on assessment of terms associated with such OCRPS, the inst'ments do not meet the
condition ofan equity instrument as per Ind AS 32 and accordingly have been classified as fuarcial liability as at April 1, 201?

Deferred Tsx Asset (DTA)
E The Conpany has recognized Defened Tax Asset in view of reasonable certainty of fhre taxable profts prescribed under Ind AS as against the condition of virtual certainty of
futue taxable profits supported by convincing evidence which was required to be fulfilled mder Indim GAAP

34: Defined benefit gratuity plan
The Compmy has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more ofservice is eligible for gratuity, on cessation ofemployment and it is
computed at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of seruice subject to limit of Rs 2,000,000 as per The Paynent of Gratuiry Act,1972.

The following tables smarized the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss ald the firnded status and amouts recognized in the Balance
Sheet for the gratuity plan

Movement in defined benelit

Particulam March 31.2019 March 31. 2018
)efined benefit oblisation as at the besiming ofthe vea 2.23.9r 1.40.6r9
lment sewice cost 93-182
lterest on defined benefit obligation r 6.883 9 s62

Remeasuements- Acruarial (gain)/ Loss on total liabiities (l.34.893 (19.451

Benefits paid

Defined benefit obligation as at tbe end ofthe year 1.79.639 2.23.912

value ofplan assets as at the beginning ofthe

Fair value of plan assets as at the end ofthe year



Balance Sheet

March 31.2018

CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Finatrcial Statements for the vear ended March 31. 2019

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

re as sborm below:

cash flow

Particuls rs March 31. 2019 March 31,2018

I Year 6.983 t2.280
2Yeu 9.758 15 306
3Yer l3 073 1 s.s38
lYear 18.893 20-915
5 Year 22.059 27.05'1

\fter vear 5 7261: 3.91.559

Discount mte: The discomt mte is based on the prevailing maket lelds of Indian govement secuities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated tem of the obligations.

Salary escalation rate: The estimates offuhre salary increases considered tzking into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevmt factors

35: Leases
Operating lease where tbe Company is a lessee

lheL6mpafyss|F1nca6t|eas$garr,ahgefrentsafenfespecl0l0pefetlfgledses0tdtiidepremses(Headofhceandbrmchothce)',lhe|1eadUtliceandbrmchooepred are
generally rented on cancellable term ofeleven months with or without escalation clause, howevernone ofthe lease agreement cffiies non-cancellable leme periods. There re
leases

sub-

atrd )ss

Pa rticulars March 31,2019 March 31.2018

lurrent seruice cosl '13.737 93 182

nterest Cost 16.883 9-562
Iotal 90.620 1.02.744

Marcb 31.2019

of the fair value oftotal assets are as follows:

of Actuarial
Parficulan March 31.2019 March 31.2018

Discomt rate 1 4801 7.54o/,

lxpected retum on plan assets NI NI
Rate oflncrease in comoensation levels 5.00o/, 5.00%

Retirement age (years) 5{ )l

A quantitative sensitivity analvsis for significant assumDtions as at the balance sheet date
Particulars Marcb 31.2019 March 31.2018

)iscount mte (+0.5%) 7 089' (8 602

)iscount rate (-0.570) 7.6t7 9.23',1

ialary hflation (+l7o) 16_054 19.47 4

Saln Inflation G1%) 124 (17.153

Withdrawal Rate (+57") (7 -121 (5.997

Wiftdrawal Rate G5%) (3 246 (6 348

lease pa]ments recognized in the Statement ofProfit & Loss

Minimum lease obligations
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(Amount in rupees unless otheMise stated)

36: Amouna Dayable to micro small and medium enterDrises
There se no mounts that need to be disclosed in accorduce with the Micro Small md Medium Eoterprise Developm€nt Act, 2006 (the 'MSMED') pertaining to micro or small enterprises
As at Mdch 31, 2019 & Mdch 31, 2018, no supplier hr intimated the Compiy about its stats o micro or small enterprises or its registration with the appropriate authority under MSMED

37: Risk Manasement and financisl obicctiv€s
fskismintegra|partoftheCompmy'sbusinessmdsoundriskmeagementiscritica|tothesuccessAsafnucialintemedi,
enyiromentwithinwhichitoperatesadprimri|yinc|udescredit,liquidityadmeketriskse
The risk mmagement policy is approved by the Boild ofDirecton

TheCompmyhcidentifedmdimp|ementedcomprehensivepo|iciesmdproceduresto4sess,monitor4dmeageskth[ou$out6e
improvedadadaptedinthecontextofchagingriskscenaiomdtheagi|ityoftheriskmuagenentprocessismonitored
continuous evaluation ofrisks includes taking stock ofthe risk ludscape on a event-driven bmis

TheCompmyhome|aborateproc€ssforriskmuagemertMajorrisksidentifedbythebusinessesmdfnctions8esystematiclyaddressedtfou

37.1 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk

systematic methodolo
proposedueaFurther,ourc|ientduediIigenceproceduesencompusvaiouslayersofchecks,designedto6s€ssthequa|ityofeproposedg

The Conpmy
househo|dsinRura|ArecFurther,cwfocusonprovidingmicroJoasinRwa|Arec,ourresu|tsofoperationsieafectedbyeperfomce

aresulqtheycabeadverseIyaIIectedbydec|iningeconomicconditionsad
not be effective in recovering the value ofour lous

InordertomitigatetheimpactofcreditriskintheftUreproftability'thecofpanymakesreseresboistheexpectedcreditloss

The below discussion describes the Compmy's approach for csessing impaiment 6 stated in note 3(e) ofthe significmt accounting policies

The Compay detemines PD on a collective bais by stmti$ring t}e entire portfolio into meoingfirl categories o discussed below.

TheCompuyuseshistorica|vintageinfomationofitslo4pofo|iotoestimateP

type of uderlying osets dalysed by the Compay i e for Stage II, the timefrme used is more tha I ye

uoon the underlving clrusification ofdset (i e. Staee I or Stace In
of PD rates detemined by the for its ae r follom:

B6ed on its review ofmacro-economic €conomic outlook, the Compmy hc msessed that no adjustment is required for temporary overlalE to detemine qualitative impact on its PD's s at

B) Exposwe at default (EAD)
The outstiding baluces as at the reportin

C) Loss given default
The Compoy detemines its expeotation o
by ealysing the recove

default ho occuned According

developments taking place in the economy

A summary ot LCD mtes detemlned by the Compoy ue grven below:

St{te Aoril l.2Ol1 March 31. 2018 March 31. 2019

{.ndhra Pradesh too 00% 100 00% 100 00%

ioa 87 16% 9s 92% 0 00v.

lhhattisgrh 93 58v. 91 96yo o ooYo

)rissa 93 58% 97 96Yo o iv/o
felegea 93 58yo 91 96yo 5824%

93 58% 97 96Yo o ooy"

of followconcenfation nsk rs 6
States April l,2Ol7 March 31. 2018 March 31.2019

\ndhra Pradesh 54 otot 5028o/, 88 8801

loa 1439% t0 29.1

lhhattiscah I7 95% to 9301

Orissa t2.2001 t2 Slot

Ielan | 44% ro 2601 I 12%

Mahrehtra o ooo/, 5 420/r

Total 100.0001 100.00% 100.0001

Jg*li.blrr
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(Amount in rupees unless otheNise stated)
37.2 Liquidity Risk

riskmiagementistomaintainsufcient|iquidityodensuret
tomeetitsfnacia|ob|igations4@dwhentheyfa|IdueourIesource

mutua|fnds,insumcecompmies,otherdomesticmdforeignnecjalinstitutions
Companyhoadoptedacaponbonowingfrommysingle|endera25/oThemafrityschedu|eforallfnmciaIliabi|itiesmdssetsie'egu|rlyreviewedmd
management (ALlv! policy md AIM Com
for mmaging the liquidity risk

The tables below provide details regrding the contnctual maturities ofsignificat finmoial osets md liabilities c on:-

Msrch

37.3 Market Risk
MfketriskistheriskthatthefairvalueorfIurec6hfowofafnmcia|instrumentwillIlucatebeoause
chages in the jnterest Etes, credit, liquidity and other market chilges The Comp@y is exposed to two types of mrket risks m follow:

37.3a Interesl rate risk
Interest rate risk is tle risk that the future coh flow ofa finacial instument will fluctuate because ofchmges in mekct interest rates

We de subject to inte

significat mismatches, ifany, are being managed appropriately

The Compmy ho Bodd approved Asset Liability Milagement (ALM) policy for mmaging interest mte risk md policy for detemining the interest rate to be charged on the loans given

through the impact on floatjng rate bonowings, c follow:

March 31.2019 Mrrch 31.2018

Finoce Cosl

0 50 o/o Increme (1 4A 472' (85.334

0 50 7o Decrease 1 4A 534 85,334

37.3b Price Risk
TheCompay'sexposuretopriceriskisnotmaterial
approved policy ofinvesting its surplus fnds in highly rated debt mutual frnds od other instrments having insignifcmt price rish not being equity fnds/ risk bering inshuments

authorities, including representations made by e industry 6sociation in this regrd

39; Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

The comoav hc various eouitv settled sh4e bded

Exercise period for all the above schemes is 9 yers from tfte date ofgrant ofthe options

Ihe expense recognised for employee seruices received during the yea is Rs I 14,504/-

of

of

Particulars Upto I month I to 2 months 2 to 3 months 3 to 6 months
6 months ao I

1 to 3 years 3 to 5 yesrs
Over 5

Total

3ofrowr 29,58,6t,47i 2,14,06,63 I 1.85.79.53: 5,48,85,73 9,02,06,408 4,O5,23,371 52,14,63,15!
)therFinmcial Liabilities '12.t8.451 23,'n,31 95,a9,771

Advmces t5,t5,07,421 r4,82,64,38'1 12,18,55,931 34,02,48,251 11,t9,84,90( 5,35,98,83t 2,t8,92,'t35 35,O6t I,14,93,81
)ther Finmcial Assets I,08,84,16, 41,53,15( 59,U,03, 1,t5,r5,564 8,13,85( 3,32,90,76"

Particulars Upto 1 month I to 2 months 2 to 3 motrlhs 3 to 6 months
6 monlhs to I I to 3 years 3 to 5 yea6 Over 5

Tota

3orowings 50.29.08.81 I 2,04,t9,64 2,23,81,681 4,'t4,99,44: 15,55,51,r3( I 1.56.6r.07 l 86,44,28,r81
)ther Finmcial Liabilities 4,08,38,91 17.0r.061 4,25.39,97t
\dvdces 14,78,45,99r r4,90,26,33( t2,79,04.421 34.8r.69.604 32,t7,02,423 3,86,0'1,251 4t.62.64t 1,13,74,18,72(
)ther Finecial Assets 2,65,t9,951 I,68,30.786 11 8,72,04' 5,19,52,2at

assets and liabiliaies as on ,2017:

Particulars
Upto I ilonah I to 2 months 2 to 3 months 3 to 6 months 6 months to 1 I to 3 years 3 to 5 ycaF Over 5 Total

tgs 1,17,43)59 96.64.19. |,3'1,90,54t 3,60,84,223 '1,14,35,371 22,46,r9,95r 3,71,11,96: 40,44,49,611
)ther Finmcial Liabilities ) )L1) ? t0,90,923 1,50,83,331 3,86,06.580
\dvaces 6,'15,10,'t9l '7,1't,38,964 6,44,8',1.t 5l t6,2s,03,85t I4_41.22.86t 83,20,66 1,30,31, 51,88,14,608

Other Finmcial Assets r,95,06,1 r,07,83,09( 7,54,581 3,10,43,835
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b The details of under ESOP Scheme 201 8 Plan with

*There re no options exercisable at the end ofperiod

Details ofStock Options granted during the year

The weighted fair uJue of stock option grmted duing the yeu wo Rs 192 9l for Grant III The

(Amount in rupees uless otheMise slated)

ofRs 263 351 for the yeu ended March 31, 2019 have been summarised m berowt

Black -Scholes Model has been ued for computing the weighted average fair value considering the following

Particulars Grant III
)ate of Grilt 07-Feb-l 9

Date ofBoard / Compensatior/ Comminee Approval 07-Feb-1!
Number of Ootions Granted tl-50(
Method ofsettlemenl Eauih
3raded Vestins Period

Day following the expiry of | 2 months from granl 3jvo
Day following the expiry of24 months fiom grmt 30%
Day following the expiry of36 months from grant 20%
Day following the expiry of48 months liom grant 20%

e Penod ) Yem from the date

Vesting conditions
lmployee must be in
ervice at the time of

Jy'eighted average ofremaining contractual Life in Yearc 88(

m exerctse

Particulare Grant III
iranted rne 13.500

-apsed during the year 6.000

lutsledins at the end ofthe vea * 7,500

Grant -III Tranche I Tranche II Tranche III Tranche IV
Jhare Drice on the date ofCrmt 3223: 3223
lxercise Price 263 35 263 3 263 3 263 3

ixpected Volatility(%) 47 1301 4'1 t30t 4'l t30/, 47 t30t
Life ofthe options granted in yed 5( 55 6( 6

Risk Free Interest Rate(%) 7 28V 7 38% 7 3ao/, 7 42"1

Expected dividend rate(%) 0 0O'/ o ooot o o00t 0 009
Fair Value ofthe option r83 7! t9t 2l 197 8( 204 |

40: Disclosure of investing and linancing transactions that do not require the use of cssh and cash equivalents

For the vear ended March 31, 2019

48,66,51,31



CRISS FINANCIAL TIOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vegr ended March 31. 2019

4l: Additionsl information required by RBI MASTER CIRCULAR

a.Capitel to risk assets ratio ('CRAR')

(Amomt in rupees unless otheNise stated)

Psrticula re March 31. 2019 March 31.2018
IRAR(7o) 47.82.1 25.030/

IRAR-Tier I Capital (7o) 47 6801 16 650/,

IRAR-Tier II Capital (7d 0.r4, 8 38ol

Amout of subordinated debt mised as Tier-II caoital t3,7'7,636 8,53,43,233

{mout raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instrments

b. Exposure to real estate sector

Cotegory Msrch 31. 2019 Msrch 31.2018
A.Direct exposure

[, Rsid€ntial Mortgags
sdins fiillv secued bv mortsases on residential 6,40,90,813 1,16,37,757

[I.Commercisl Real Estate

-ending secued by mortgages on comercial real

.II.Investments in Mortgag€ Backed Ssurities (MBS) snd

{esidqtial

lomercial Real Estate

{..Indirect exposure

Fud based md non-fund based exposues on National Housing Burk (NHB) ud Housing

fotsl 6,40.90.813 1,16,37,757

c, Outstanding ofloms against secuity ofgold as a percentage to total assets is nil.

d. The Compmy has no exposue to capital mrkel

e, Asset liability manrgement:

Maturity pattem of assets md liabilities m on Much 31, 2019:

t Ne t of provision towruds non-perfoming lous rod advmce s

* Net of provision towuds non-perfoming loms md advmces

f. Informotion on insaances offrrud

rlncludes recoveries in respect of frauds reported in eulier yeils

g The Company has no transactions / exposure in derivatives in the current and previous year

)articulars Upto 1 month I ao 2 motrths 2 to 3 months 3 to 6 monahs
6 months to 1

I to 3 y€ars 3 to 5 years Over 5 yerrs Total

Bofiowings 3,14,88,87( 3,90,86,914 3,92,85,03t 12,45,33,401 22,M,54.95( 3,91,14,958 49,79,64,13'
Adrooes * 12,88,02,94( r3,08,15, l6i to,87,82,425 31,07,84,00! 29,38,52,01( 3,60.32.15 1,87,54,01( 34,951 1,02,7E,57,671

lnvestrnents

of assets md liabilities s on Milch 31. 2018:

Particula rs Upto I month I to 2 months 2 to 3 months 3 to 6 months
6 months to 1 I to 3 years 3 to 5 yearo Over 5 yerrs Totel

Bo[owings 19,03,85,99( 4,9r,73,r0a 5,62,94,961 12,99,63,221 30,83,16,991 84,96,89,83(
Advmces * t2,36,24,661 13,O4,92,78" 1r,33,87,141 31;75,62,181 30,37,21,355 3,38,10,91J 36,90,50t r,o2,62,89,564

nvesmen$

fiaud the

Nature of fraud No. of cases Amount of fraud Recovery* Amount
nrnwided

lash Embezzlement 16.96C 16-96(

lake loans 2 15.66.609 t3-15-462 2,51,141
*Includes recovsies in respect offtauds reported in eillier yeils

et



assl credrt ano of the
Sr. No. ltrstrument Rating rgency As per final Rating assigned Valid up to Borrowinp

limil
I Bmk Lom (Long ICRA 08-Jm-19 IICRA]BBB- See Note-l 50,00,00,00(

CRISS FINAI\ICIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Not6 to the Finatrcisl Strtements for the verr ended March 31. 2019

Note 1: The rating is subject to annual surveillance till final repayment / redemption ofrated facilities.

Previous

Note l: The rating is subject to annual surveillance till final repayment / redemption ofrated facilities

* R€presents mout outstmding s per conta
r* Represents stage III loms including interest

(Amout in rupees unless ofrevise stated)

Sr. No. Instrument Rating agency As per final Rating {ssigtred Vslid up to Borrowinl
limit

3mk Inm (Long ICRA l3-Oct-17 ICRAIBB (Stable) See Note-l 50,00,00,001

No. of complaints reclressed dwirg the

No. of complaints penditrg at the end of the yeil

Cotrcentration of and 
^[PAsParticulars March 31. 2019 March 31. 201E

Concentr8tion of Advances*

Iotal advilces to twenty ltrgest bo[owss r32 2.O7
'7o) of advilces to twenty lrgest bonowers to total advilces o.0601 o 0601

Soncentrstion of Exposurs*
fotal exposue to twenty ltrgest bo[owers 207
lold of exposue to twenty lugest bonowers to total exposue L 28" 0.0601
Concentration of NPAs**
fotal exposue to top fou NPA accouts o2l

Secaor

Percentsge ofNPAS to totsl advancs in
thaa sector

As at As at
Mcr.h 31 toli

tgricultue md allied 0.0001 0 oto/<

MSME 0.00? o.0to/,

loDorate bofrowers 0.00o/, 0 0001

iervices 0 0v/, 0.0001

Jnsecued Deronal loes 0 0001 o.ovt
tuto loms o.00"1 0.0001

)ther personal loms 0.0001 O.OOo/

* Represents stage III loans.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31.2019

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

m. There has been no drawdown from reserves during the current year and previous year.

o. The Company has not sold financial assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction companies for asset reconstruction in the
current and previous year.

p. The Company has not purchased / sold non-performing financial assets in the current and previous year.

q.The company has not financed any products ofthe parent company.

r. Unsecured Advances - Refer note 6

s. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators:
The Company is registered with the 'Ministry of Corporate Affairs' (Financial regulators as

t. No penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators during current and

Particulars March 31. 2019 March 31.2018
Net NPAs to net advances (o/o) 0.0001 0.02o/(

Movement of NPAs (gross)

l. Openine balance 2.58.096 t2-190
2. Additions durins the vear 2-92.41( 2.45.906
3. Reductions during the year (5,50.505

4. Closine balance 2.58.096
Movement of Net NPAs

l. Openinsbalance 5.5 1? 1.56i
2. Additions during the vear 6.365 3.952
3. Reductionsdurins the vear I 1.882'
4. Closine balance 0 5.5r7

Movement of provision for NPAs (excl. standard assets)

l. Opening balance 2.52.578 r0.625
2. Provisions made durine the vear 2.86.045 2-41.953
3. Write offl write back of excess nrovisions 6.38.623
4. Closine balance 2.52-57E

Particulars March 31.2019 March 31.2018
l.Value of investments

) Gross value of investments

a) In India
b) Outside India
'ii) Provision for depreciation
a) In India
b) Outside India
l'iii) Net value of investments
(a) In India
fb) Outside India
2.Movement of provisions held towards deprecation
Openins balance
Add: Provision made durins the vear
Less: Write of? write back

losins balance



CRISS FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31.2019

(Amount in rupees unless otherwise stated)

+ Represents impairment allowance on stage III loans
** Represents impairment allowance on stage I and stage II loans

v. The Company has no unhedged foreign currency exposure.

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year's classification.

43: Standards issued but not yet effective
Ind AS 116: leases

In March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules,
2019, notifying Ind AS 116, 'Leases'. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17'Leases'. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st April, 2019. lnd AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the
accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees - leases of'low
value' assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make lease pal,rnents (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to
separately recognize the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

The Company is evaluating the requirements of Ind AS 116 and its effect on the financial statements.

As per our report ofeven date

For Raju and Prasad

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number : 0034755

hlf of the Board of Directors of
I Holdines Limited

S.Ranganathan

Partner

Membership No.022738

Place: Hyderabad

Date:24-05-2019

Director
DIN No. 00004842

Place: Mumbai
Date:24-05-2019

u. Provrsrons and contingencies (shown under exDendrfure ln statement ol t and
Pa rticulars March 31.2019 March 31. 2018
Provision for income tax (net) 5-66.78.954 3.35-97.034
Provision for non-performing assets* 2.54.066
Provision for standard assets+* (6.51.167 4.57.03(
Provision for theft & fraud
Provision for sratuiW 69. l0 I 1.02.744
Provision for leave benefits 4.62.894 3.32.725
Provision for insurance claims fl.08.024' 94.908
Provision for bonus 10,75.658 9.58.078
Provision for other assets

42: CSR nses

Particu lars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year l 1,54,88t

b) Amount spent during the year on purposes other than

construction/acquisition of any asset

Paid

Yet to be paid I 1.54-888

Total r 1.54.888

For and on be

Criss Financi

DINNo.06436957


